
 

 

Notice of Meeting and Agenda 

Pensions Audit Sub-Committee 
 

2.00 pm Monday, 4th December, 2023 

Hybrid Meeting - Burns Suites, COSLA, 19 Haymarket Yards, Edinburgh EH12 5BH / Microsoft 
Teams 

 

 

This is a public meeting and members of the public are welcome to attend. 

The law allows the Sub-Committee to consider some issues in private. Any items under “Private 
Business” will not be published, although the decisions will be recorded in the minute. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contacts: 

Susan Handyside, Governance Manager, Lothian Pension Fund 
Tel:  0333 996 1971 
Email:  susan.handyside@edinburgh.gov.uk  

Andrew Henderson, Committee Services, City of Edinburgh Council 
Email:  andrew.henderson@edinburgh.gov.uk 

  

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:susan.handyside@edinburgh.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.henderson@edinburgh.gov.uk


 

                       Pensions Audit Sub-Committee - 4 
December 2023 

Page 2 of 6 

 

 

 

 

1. Quorum Check 
 

1.1   The Convener will check to ensure a quorum is in attendance to ensure 
the meeting can proceed. 

 

 

2. Order of Business 
 

2.1   Including any notices of motion and any other items of business 
submitted as urgent for consideration at the meeting. 

 

 

3. Declaration of Interests 
 

3.1   Members of the Sub-Committee and members of the Pension 
Board should declare any financial and non-financial interests 
they have in the items of business for consideration, identifying 
the relevant agenda item and the nature of their interest. 

 

 

4. Deputations 
 

4.1   If any 

 

 

5. Minutes 
 

5.1   Minute of the Pensions Audit Sub Committee of 26 September 2023 
(circulated) – submitted for approval as a correct record. 

 

7 - 12 

6. Reports 
 

6.1   Agenda Planning Update – report by the Chief Executive Officer, 
Lothian Pension Fund (circulated) 

13 - 22 



 

                       Pensions Audit Sub-Committee - 4 
December 2023 

Page 3 of 6 

 

 

 

 
 

6.2   Lothian Pension Fund - Internal Audit Update – November 2023 - 
report by Principal Audit Manager, City of Edinburgh Council 
(circulated) 

 

23 - 40 

 
6.3   Employer Performance and Data Quality Update – report by the Chief 

Operations Officer, Lothian Pension Fund (circulated) 

 

41 - 94 

 
6.4   Investment Income Review Cross Border Withholding Tax and EU Tax 

Recoveries – report by the Chief Finance Officer, Lothian Pension Fund 
(circulated) 

 

95 - 104 

7. Motions 
 

7.1   None. 

 

 

8. Resolution to Consider in Private 
 

8.1   The Sub-Committee is requested under Section 50(A)(4) of the Local 
Government (Scotland) Act 1973, to exclude the public from the 
meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they 
would involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
Paragraphs 1.3 and 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 7A of the Act. 

 

 

9. Private Reports 
 

9.1   Risk & Compliance Update - report by the Chief Risk Officer, Lothian 
Pension Fund (circulated) 

 

105 - 116 

 

9.2   IT Information Security Update – report by the Chief Operations 117 - 154 



 

                       Pensions Audit Sub-Committee - 4 
December 2023 

Page 4 of 6 

 

 

 

Officer, Lothian Pension Fund (circulated) 

 

Nick Smith 

Service Director, Legal and Assurance 

 

Committee Members 
 

John Anzani (Convener), Councillors Doggart and Ross. 

Please note that members of the Pension Board and the Independent Professional Observer will 
also be invited to attend and participate in this meeting. 

Information about the Pensions Audit Sub-Committee 
 

The Pensions Audit Sub-Committee consists of 2 Councillors and 1 external member and is 
appointed by the City of Edinburgh Council in its separate capacity as administering authority of 
the Lothian Pension Fund. The Audit Sub-Committee monitors the operation of the Fund’s 
internal controls, governance, risk and compliance arrangements and financial reporting. 

This meeting of the Pensions Audit Sub-Committee is being held on a hybrid basis in the Burns 
Suites, COSLA, 19 Haymarket Yards, Edinburgh EH12 5BH and by Microsoft Teams and is open to 
members of the public. 

The meeting will be monitored by Susan Handyside. 

Pension Board Members 
 

Alan Williamson, Brian Robertson, Darren May, Jim Anderson (Chair), Sharon Dalli, Thomas Carr-
Pollock, Tom Howorth, Nick Chapman and Tony Beecher. 

Information about the Pension Board 
 

The Pension Board consists of 10 members, 5 members from the employer bodies and 5 
members from trade unions representing members within the pension funds as set out in the 
regulations. 

The role of the Pension Board is to help ensure that the operation of the pension funds is in 
accordance with the applicable law and regulation.  



 

                       Pensions Audit Sub-Committee - 4 
December 2023 

Page 5 of 6 

 

 

 

https://www.lpf.org.uk/about-us/ 
 
Independent Professional Observer 

 
Alison Murray 

Information about the Independent Professional Observer 
 

The Independent Professional Observer is appointed by the Lothian Pension Fund to help 
strengthen the Lothian Pension Fund’s governance. The role is to provide independent 
observations to the Pensions Committee and Pension Board. 

The purpose of the role is to enhance the scrutiny of the decision making and provide the 
Committee and Board with additional experience and knowledge impartial from the Lothian 
Pension Fund’s Officers. 

City of Edinburgh Council Oversight 
 

The City of Edinburgh Council has statutory responsibility to administer the Lothian and Scottish 
Homes Pension Funds. In order to most effectively carry out that function (and to reflect the 
separate statutory responsibilities, and regulation, of the pension funds) the City of Edinburgh 
Council has delegated management responsibility for the Pension Funds to the Lothian Pension 
Fund Group and its two arms-length companies LPFE Limited and LPFI Limited. Critical parent 
oversight continues to be carried out by the Pensions Committee and Dr Deborah Smart, 
Executive Director of Corporate Services for The City of Edinburgh Council as the Administering 
Authority for the Fund to ensure that its statutory functions are being properly carried out. 

Lothian Pension Fund Senior Leadership Team 
 

The senior leadership team responsible and accountable for the business and activities of the 
Lothian Pension Fund Group are: 

 
David Vallery, Chief Executive Officer Bruce Miller, Chief Investment Officer 
Pensions Audit Sub-Committee  
Kerry Thirkell, Chief Risk Officer 
Alan Sievewright, Chief Finance Officer 
Helen Honeyman, Chief People Officer 

https://www.lpf.org.uk/about-us/


 

                       Pensions Audit Sub-Committee - 4 
December 2023 

Page 6 of 6 

 

 

 

Further Information and Contact 
 

If you have any questions about the agenda or meeting arrangements, please contact Susan 
Handyside, Assistant Company Secretary, Lothian Pension Fund, PO Box 24158, Edinburgh 
EH3 1GY, Tel 0333 996 1971 email han24S33@lpf.org.uk . 
 
A copy of the agenda and papers for this meeting will be available for inspection prior to the 
meeting at the Main Reception, City Chambers, High Street, Edinburgh EH1 1YJ. 
The agenda, minutes and public reports for this meeting can be viewed via the City of 
Edinburgh Council committee portal. 
 

 

mailto:han24S33@lpf.org.uk


 
Pensions Audit Sub-Committee – 27 September 2022     Page 1 

 

 

Pensions Audit Sub-Committee Minutes 

2pm, Tuesday 26 September 2023 

Present: 

John Anzani (Convener), Councillor Phil Doggart and Councillor Neil Ross. 

Pension Board Member: 

Tom Howorth. 

Other Attendees: 

Andy McKinnell, Independent Professional Observer, Laura Calder, (Senior Audit Manager, City of 

Edinburgh Council) and Nick Bennett, Azets Audit Services (External Auditor). 

 

1.  Quorum 

The Clerk confirmed that notice of the meeting had been given and that a quorum was present and 

the Convener declared the meeting open. 

2.  Order of Business 

The Clerk confirmed that there was no change to the order of business. 

3.  Declaration of Interests 

Decision 

To note there were no declarations of interest. 

4.  Minutes 

Decision 

To approve the minute of the Pensions Audit Sub-Committee of 19 June 2023 as a correct record. 

5.  Pension Board oversight 

The Pension Board representatives confirmed that the Pension Board would provide comment any 

relevant matters during the meeting. 

6.  Agenda Planning and Governance Update 

An overview of proposed reports for future meetings of the Pensions Committee and Pensions 

Audit Sub-Committee and the annual cycle was presented. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5.1



 

 

Pensions Audit Sub-Committee – 26 September 2023      Page 2 

An update was also provided on the appointment process which had been undertaken during July 

and August for an Independent Professional Observer for Lothian Pension Fund. 

Information was also submitted updating members on the LPFE and LPFI Boards’ succession 

planning considerations with the current Chair of both Boards retiring on 30 September 2023. 

Members were asked to note the appointments of Dr Deborah Smart, Executive Director of 

Corporate Services, City of Edinburgh Council as chair of LPFE and Leslie Robb, Independent Non-

Executive Director as Chair of LPFI.  Nareen Turnbull, Service Director, Human Resources, City of 

Edinburgh Council would also become a director of LPFE with effect from 1 October 2023. 

Decision 

1) To note the agenda planning document. 

2) To agree to close the actions set out in the tracker at appendix 2. 

3) To note the recruitment of the new Independent Professional Observer subject to 

agreement of mutually acceptable terms and conditions for the provision of the 

Independent Professional Observer Service for Lothian Pension Fund. 

4) To note the Lothian Pension Fund governance update regarding the changes in membership 

of the LPFE and LPFI Boards. 

5) To note the significant contribution made by Hugh Dunn, Chair of LPFE and LPFI to the work 

of Lothian Pension Fund and to extend the Sub-Committee’s best wishes for his retirement. 

6) To note the significant contribution made by Andy McKinnell, Independent Professional 

Observer to the work of Lothian Pension Fund.  

7) To note that the Pension Board Members were invited to comment on agenda items during 

Committee meetings. 

8) To note that a review of the Shareholder Agreement with City of Edinburgh Council was 

planned for 2024. 

 (Reference – report by the Chief Executive Officer, Lothian Pension Fund, submitted.) 

7. Audited Annual Report and Accounts of the Lothian Pension Fund and 

Scottish Homes Pension Fund  

An overview and details of the Audited Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 March 

2023 for Lothian Pension Fund and Scottish Homes Pension Fund was presented to members by the 

Chief Finance Officer, Lothian Pension Fund and the Fund’s external auditor, Nick Bennett from 

Azets Audit Services. 

The external auditor presented the audit findings to members including the audit opinion, key 

findings on audit risks, audit adjustments and accounting systems and internal controls.  

Members were pleased to note that an unqualified opinion had been provided on the financial 

statements and other prescribed matters for Lothian Pension Fund and Scottish Homes Pension 

Fund.  

Page 8



 

 

Pensions Audit Sub-Committee – 26 September 2023      Page 3 

Key points within the Audit Report included confirmation that work had been performed in 

accordance with the Audit Scotland Code of Audit Practice, International Standards on Auditing (UK 

and Ireland) and Ethical Standards. 

Some minor disclosure and presentational adjustments had been identified during the audit and 

these had been reflected in the final set of financial statements as set out in appendix 2 of the 

report. 

Decision 

1) To note the report by Azets Audit Services “Lothian Pension Funds 2022/23 Annual Audit 

Report to Members of the Pensions Committee and the Controller of Audit” set out at 

Appendix 1. 

2) To note the audited Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2023 for the Lothian 

Pension Fund and the Scottish Homes Pension Fund, set out at Appendix 2.  

3) To note that the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 of both  the 

wholly owned companies, LPFE Limited and LPFI Limited, had been approved by the 

respective Boards of Directors in June 2023 set out in the statements at Appendices 3 and 4. 

4) To note the Letter of Representation (ISA 580) by the Chief Finance Officer, Lothian Pension 

Fund set out in Appendix 5. 

5) To record the Sub-Committee’s thanks to the Lothian Pension Fund team and the external 

auditor for their work in ensuring that the audit had been carried out smoothly and 

efficiently. 

(References – Pensions Audit Sub-Committee 19 June 2023 (item 7); report by the Chief Finance 

Officer, Lothian Pension Fund, submitted.) 

8. Internal Audit Update – August 2023 

Details were reported of progress of Internal Audit’s (IA) assurance activity on behalf of Lothian 

Pension Fund overseen by the City of Edinburgh Council’s IA function across the period from 2 May 

to 25 August 2023. 

Good progress was being made with delivery of the 2023/24 annual plan with the People Processes 

audit completed and three further audits underway. The completed People Processes audit was set 

out at appendix 1 for review and scrutiny. 

As at 10 August 2023, Lothian Pension Fund had 22 open management actions with 3 actions past 

the original implementation date. A total of 5 actions had been closed since May and 14 new 

actions raised following completion of audits. 

Decision 

1) To note progress with delivery of the 2023/24 Lothian Pension Fund internal audit plan with 

one audit complete and a further three in progress. 

Page 9



 

 

Pensions Audit Sub-Committee – 26 September 2023      Page 4 

2) To note progress with implementation of agreed management actions from previously 

completed internal audits. 

3) To note that the Head of Internal Audit would report the internal audit position as it related 

to the LPFE and LPFI Boards to both Boards at the appropriate time. 

(Reference – report by the Head of Internal Audit, City of Edinburgh Council, submitted.) 

9. Fraud Prevention 

Members were presented with an overview of the work undertaken by Lothian Pension Fund to 

prevent fraud including controls such as LPF’s delegations, one off payments processes and bank 

validation checks.  The report also updated members on LPF’s participation in initiatives such at the 

national fraud initiative and the Local Government Association (LGA) National Insurance database.  

There had been no cases of fraud (member, employer, supplier or colleague) identified in this 

period. 

Decision 

To note the report. 

(Reference - report by the Chief Executive Officer, Lothian Pension Fund, submitted.) 

10. Risk and Compliance Update 

The Sub-Committee, under Section 50(A)(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, excluded 

the public from the meeting for the item of business on the grounds that it involved the disclosure 

of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1.3 and 6 of Schedule 7(A) of the Act. 

An overview was provided of monitoring and assurance undertaken by Lothian Pensions Fund 

noting any material observations or exceptions together with a summary of the work to enhance 

current risk management arrangements. 

Decision 

Detailed in the confidential schedule, signed by the Convener with reference to this minute. 

(Reference – report by the Chief Risk Officer, Lothian Pension Fund, submitted) 

Page 10



Document is Restricted

Page 11

by virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3, 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 7A
 of the Local Government(Scotland) Act 1973.



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023       Page 1 

 

 

Pensions Audit Sub Committee 

2.00pm, Monday, 4 December 2023    

 

Agenda Planning Update 
 

Item number 6.1  

  

 

1. Recommendations 

 

 

 

David Vallery  

Chief Executive Officer, Lothian Pension Fund 

Contact: Susan Handyside, Assistant Company Secretary, Lothian Pension Fund 

E-mail: lpfgovernancecomms@lpf.org.uk | Tel: 0333 996 1900 

 

  

Page 13

Agenda Item 6.1

mailto:lpfgovernancecomms@lpf.org.uk


 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023       Page 2 

Agenda Planning Update 
 

2. Executive Summary 

 

 

 

3. Background

 

 

 

 

 Main Report

 

 

 

Page 14



 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023       Page 3 

  

Page 15



 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023       Page 4 

March 2024  

Pensions Committee   
 

• LPF Strategy and Business Plan (operating plan) and Budget  

• Actuarial Valuation for Lothian Pension Fund 

• Actuarial Valuation for Scottish Homes Pension Fund 

• Funding Strategy Statement 

• Audit Plans (Internal and External)  

• LPF Internal Audit Review  

• Policies and Strategies Update  

• Benchmarking  

• Risk and Compliance update 

The Audit Sub Committee meet three times a year but have an additional meeting 

scheduled on Tuesday 19 March 2024.   

June 2024  

Pensions Committee  

• Referrals/ recommendations from 

Pensions Audit Sub Committee 

• LPF Annual Report and Accounts 

(Unaudited) 

• Internal Audit Opinion 

• Statement of Investment Principles   

• Joint Investment Strategy Panel 

Activity   

• Annual Investment Update – Lothian 

Pension Fund 

• Annual Investment Update - Scottish 

Homes 

• Annual LPF Group Governance Update 

• Risk and Compliance Update   

 

Audit Sub Committee  

• LPF Annual Report and Accounts 

(Unaudited) 

• LPF Internal Audit Opinion 

• Internal Audit Update 

• Risk and Compliance Update 

Future Pensions Committee and Audit Sub Committee dates  

 

Pensions Committee  

• Wednesday 20 March 2024 at 2pm 

• Wednesday 26 June 2024 at 2pm  

Audit Sub Committee  

• Tuesday 19 March 2024 at 2pm 

• Tuesday 25 June 2024 at 2pm 

Page 16



 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023       Page 5 

5. Financial impact

 

6. Stakeholder/Regulatory Impact

 

 

7. Background reading/external references

8. Appendices 

Appendix 1 – LPF’s Annual Agenda Planning Cycle 

Appendix 2 – Action Tracker 

 

Page 17

https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s49973/CommitteeTermsofReferenceandDelegatedFunctionsJune2022final.pdf


Appendix 1  

Frequency Pensions Committee Audit Sub Committee 

Every 3 
years 

December or March 

Actuarial Valuation: LPF SHPF (next report due March 2024) 

March 

Funding Strategy Statement (review due June 2023 with final version 
presented for approval in March 2024) 

 

N/A 

 

N/A 

Biennial 

September 

Pension Administration Strategy (presented in March 2022) 

Administrating authority Discretions Policy. Next review due September 
2024 

 

N/A 

N/A 

Annually 

March 

LPF Strategy and Business Plan and Budget 
Audit Plans (Internal and External) 
 
 
 
Benchmarking – Investment and Administration Costs 

June 

LPF Annual Report and Accounts (Unaudited) 
LPF Internal Audit Opinion 
Statement of Investment Principles 
Joint Investment Strategy Panel Activity 
Annual Investment Updates - Lothian Pension Fund and Scottish Homes 
Pension Fund 
Annual LPF Group Governance Update 

 

 

N/A 
Draft internal audits and plan will be developed in consultation with the 
Convenor of the Audit Sub Committee, the CEO (LPF) and, if appropriate, 
the Independent Professional Observer and circulated to the Audit Sub 
Committee members for comment. 
N/A 

LPF Annual Report & Accounts (Unaudited) 
LPF Internal Audit Opinion 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
 
N/A 
 
 

P
age 18



Appendix 1  

Frequency Pensions Committee Audit Sub Committee 

September 

Employer Covenant Review 
Audited Annual Report and Accounts of the Lothian Pension Fund and 
Scottish Homes Pension Fund (including the Annual Report by External 
Auditor) 
Stewardship Code Review 
N/A 
Lothian Pension Fund Contract Awards Report 
 
December 

Annual Report by External Auditor (or September if available) 
N/A 
Stewardship  
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

 
 
N/A 
Audited Annual Report and Accounts of the Lothian Pension Fund and 
Scottish Homes Pension Fund (including the Annual Report by External 
Auditor) 
N/A 
Fraud Prevention 
N/A 

Annual Report by External Auditor (or September if available) 
Investment Income Review-Cross-Border Withholding Tax and EU Tax 
Recoveries 
N/A 
Pensions Data Quality 
Global Custody Services Performance 
Compliance Update and Risk Management: In-depth review 
Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVC) Review 

Semi 
Annually 

March & September 

Employers Participating in Lothian Pension Fund 

June & December 

N/A 

N/A 

IT Information Security Update 

3 Times per 
year 

March1, September & December 

Operating Plan and Budget Update N/A 

 
1 The March update will have the dual purpose of a business strategy update, budget review and budget approval for the forthcoming financial year 

P
age 19



Appendix 1  

Frequency Pensions Committee Audit Sub Committee 
 

June, September & December 

Referrals / recommendations from Pensions Audit-Sub 
N/A 

N/A 
Risk and Compliance Update 

Quarterly 
March, June, September & December 

Risk and Compliance Update Internal Audit Update 

As required Investment Strategy Reviews (at least every 3 years – next due June 2024) N/A 

 

P
age 20



Action Log 

Meeting Reference Formal/Informal Type Owner / Detail Update Completion date Status
29/09/2023 20230926-2 Formal - Agenda 

Planning report
Approval SH To note the agenda planning document.

2) To agree to close the actions set out in the tracker at appendix 2.
3) To note the recruitment of the new Independent Professional Observer subject to agreement regarding mutually 
acceptable terms and conditions for the provision of independent professional service for Lothian Pension Fund.
4) To note the LPF governance update regarding the changes in membership of the LPFE and LPFI Boards. 
5) To note Hugh Dunn, Chair of LPFE and LPFI Boards significant  contribution to LPF. 
6) To note the significant contribution of Andy McKinnell, Independent Professional Observer to LPF.
7) To note that the Pension Board members were invited to comment on agenda items during committee meetings. 
8) To note that a review of the Shareholder Agreement with City of Edinburgh Council was planned for 2024.

A further update will be provided in June 2024 regarding the 
shareholder agreement review and presented to the 
pensions committee.

29/09/2023 propose to close

29/09/2023 20230926-3 Formal - Audited 
Annual report

Action AS/JK To note the report by Azets Audit Services “Lothian Pension Funds 2022/23 Annual Audit Report to Members of the Pensions 
Committee and the Controller of Audit” set out in Appendix 1.
2) To note the audited annual report for the year ended 31 March 2023 for the Lothian Pension Fund and the Scottish Homes 
Pension Fund set out in appendix 2.
3) To note that the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 of both the wholly owned companies, 
LPFE Ltd and LPFI Ltd, had been approved by the respective Board of Directors in June 2023, set out in appendices 3 and 4.
4) To note the “Letter of Representation (ISA 580)” by the Chief Finance Officer, Lothian Pension Fund set out in appendix 5.
5) To record the Sub-Committee’s thanks to the LPF Team and the External Auditor for their work in ensuring that the audit 
had been carried out smoothly and efficiently.
Note: Information to be circulated to members with an explanation of the differential in equities returns between the US 
dollar and sterling.

Note will be circulated in advance of the ASC meeting. propose to close

Pension Audit Sub Committee 

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023 Page 1 

 

 
 
 

Pensions Audit Sub-Committee 
2pm, Monday, 4 December 2023 

 
Lothian Pension Fund - Internal Audit Update – November 2023 
 
 
Item number 6.2 

 
 

1. Recommendations 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Colin McCurley 
Principal Audit Manager, City of Edinburgh Council 

Legal and Assurance, Corporate Services Directorate 

E-mail: colin.mccurley@edinburgh.gov.uk | Tel: 0131 529 3680 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6.2

mailto:laura.calder@edinburgh.gov.uk


Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023 Page 2 

 

Lothian Pension Fund - Internal Audit Update – December 2023 
 

2. Executive Summary 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
3. Background 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
4. Main Report 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 24



Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023 Page 3 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5. Financial impact 
 

 

Page 25



Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023 Page 4 

 

6. Stakeholder/Regulatory Impact 
 

 

 

 

 
7. Background reading/external references 

 

 

 
8. Appendices 

 

Appendix 1 Internal Audit Report – Senior Managers and Certification Regime 
December 2023 

Appendix 2 LPF outstanding audit actions as at 6 November 2023. 

Page 26

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/public-sector-internal-audit-standards


 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Internal Audit Report  

Lothian Pension Fund – Senior Managers and Certification Regime 
 
3 November 2023 
 
LPF2304 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Overall 

Assessment 

 

 
Reasonable 
Assurance 

 

 
 

 

 

P
age 27



 Internal Audit Report: LPF2304 Senior Managers and Certification Regime 
2    
\
* 

 
 

Contents 

 

Executive Summary .......................................................................................................................................................................................................3 

Background and scope ...................................................................................................................................................................................................4 

Findings and Management Action Plan ..........................................................................................................................................................................5 

Appendix 1 – Control Assessment and Assurance Definitions .....................................................................................................................................13 

 

 

This Internal Audit review is conducted by the City of Edinburgh Council for the Lothian Pension Fund under the auspices of the 2023/24 internal audit plan 

approved by the Pensions Audit Sub-Committee in March 2023. The review is designed to help the Lothian Pension Fund assess and refine its internal control 

environment. It is not designed or intended to be suitable for any other purpose and should not be relied upon for any other purpose. The City of Edinburgh 

Council accepts no responsibility for any such reliance and disclaims all liability in relation thereto. 
 
The internal audit work and reporting has been performed in line with the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and as a result is not 

designed or intended to comply with any other auditing standards. 
 
Although there are specific recommendations included in this report to strengthen internal control, it is management’s responsibility to design, implement and 

maintain an effective control framework, and for the prevention and detection of irregularities and fraud. This is an essential part of the efficient management of 

the Lothian Pension Fund. Communication of the issues and weaknesses arising from this audit does not absolve management of this responsibility. High and 

Critical risk findings will be raised with senior management and members as appropriate. 

P
age 28



 

 Internal Audit Report: LPF2304 Senior Managers and Certification Regime 
3    
\

Executive Summary 
Overall opinion and summary of findings 

There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management and control 

in place for managing compliance with the key elements of the Senior Managers 

and Certification Regime (SM&CR). The following areas for improvement have 

been identified which may put at risk the achievement of objectives: 

• there is no central repository of the SM&CR requirements and expectations 

for individuals. This would provide easy reference for those individuals that 

are Certified Individuals or hold the prescribed Senior Management 

Functions (SMF) 

• the FCA expects individuals’ prescribed responsibilities to be documented 

and a comprehensive responsibilities map to be in place. Although 

organisational roles are documented, these do not align to FCA-prescribed 

responsibilities as per Senior Management Arrangements, Systems and 

Controls sourcebook (SYSC) 24.2 

• LPFI does not maintain an SMF Handover Policy which is a requirement of 

the SM&CR rules. Notwithstanding, we note that this process has operated 

as required during the period 

 
 

 

• the SM&CR requirements stipulate specific activities / processes that 

organisations should operate when appointing individuals. Although a 

“recruitment flowchart” has been documented for guidance, there is no 

reference to the SM&CR requirements applicable to LPFI. Notwithstanding, 

we note that this process has operated as required during the period 

• there is no documented approach to monitoring and evidencing ongoing 

compliance with the SM&CR requirements to enable the Board to monitor 

and gain assurance it operates in line with its SM&CR framework and 

demonstrate compliance with essential requirements. 

Management response 

LPFI has developed a consolidated SMCR document, but it had not finalised or 

implemented ahead of the audit.  LPFI acknowledge the findings in this audit, 

noting the recommendations are already integrated within our draft SMCR 

document.  The timing of this review will also allow us to consider the review 

observations and make any further enhancements to our SMCR arrangements 

at this time. 
 

Audit Assessment  

Audit area  
Control 

Design  

Control 

Operation  
Findings  Priority Rating  

1. Senior Manager and Certified 
Individual Understanding 

  
No findings noted N/A 

2. Identification of responsibilities 
and function 

    Finding 2 – Overall and Prescribed Responsibilities 

Finding 3 – SMF Handover Policy 
Medium Priority  

3. SM&CR Framework and 
policies 

    

Finding 1 – SM&CR governance arrangements Medium Priority 

Finding 4 – Appointment and induction process Low Priority  

Finding 6 – Fitness and Propriety assessment process and procedures Advisory 

4. Conduct rules Implementation 
    

Finding 5 – Oversight and governance Medium Priority 

Reasonable 
assurance 

Overall 
Assessment 

P
age 29



 

 Internal Audit Report: LPF2304 Senior Managers and Certification Regime 
4    
\

Background and scope
The Senior Managers and Certification Regime (SM&CR) was developed 

jointly by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) and the Prudential 

Regulation Authority (PRA) and is aimed at ensuring robust accountability 

and decision making within the Financial Services industry. The SM&CR was 

initially applied to the banking sector (banks, building societies, credit unions, 

and large investment firms) before it was expanded to all FCA-regulated 

firms from December 2019. The SM&CR includes: 

• Senior Manager Regime - approval regime of individuals performing 

Senior Management Functions (SMFs). The most senior decision 

makers, or senior managers, at the organisation must be assessed as fit 

and proper, have clearly-defined responsibilities and be subject to 

enhanced conduct requirements, including the duty to take reasonable 

steps in fulfilling their responsibilities. Appointments to SMF roles require 

regulatory approval 

• Certification Regime - organisations solely responsible for assessing 

the fitness and propriety of employees who could pose a risk of 

significant harm to the organisation or its customers. Organisations need 

to determine on appointment and then certify annually that they remain fit 

and proper to undertake their role 

• Conduct Rules - conduct standards applicable to most employees for 

organisations. There is a specific code of conduct for SMFs that requires 

a higher standard of conduct than the code of conduct for all staff.  

The SM&CR is applicable to LPFI Limited (LPFI), a wholly-owned subsidiary 

of Lothian Pension Fund established to support collaboration with other 

pension funds. LPFI holds the necessary FCA permissions to deliver 

investment services to partner pension funds and other professional 

investors. Since 2016, LPFI has provided investment advisory and arranging 

services to clients, which includes strategic investment advice. 

In addition to investment advisory services, LPFI provides portfolio 

management services to other local government pension schemes. 

 

 

Scope 

The objective of this review was to assess the governance framework in 

place to provide assurance of compliance with the key elements of the 

SM&CR. 

Risks 

The review also provided assurance in relation to the following LPF risk:  

• Regulatory breach - LPF do not meet regulatory obligations leading to 

enforcement action or fines and reputational damage. 

Limitations of Scope 

• the scope of the review was limited to LPFI, its compliance with the 

requirements of the SM&CR regulations and the audit objective outlined 

above 

• this review assessed the framework that supports LPFI in meeting its 

obligations in respect of the SM&CR regulations as set out in the audit 

areas within the audit assessment. This review did not test or assure how 

an individual SMF manages their allocated function/responsibilities (for 

example, investment management, whistleblowing, risk management 

framework, or remuneration) 

• re-performance of fitness and proprietary assessments of Senior 

Managers did not form part of this review 

• the review covered the roles and responsibilities in operation at the time 

of review and did not include any future changes to SM&CR 

arrangements. 

Reporting Date 

Testing was undertaken between 18 and 28 September 2023. 

Our audit work concluded on 28 September 2023, and our findings and 

opinion are based on the conclusion of our work as at that date.

P
age 30

https://www.fca.org.uk/firms/senior-managers-certification-regime
https://www.fca.org.uk/
https://www.bankofengland.co.uk/prudential-regulation
https://www.bankofengland.co.uk/prudential-regulation


 

 Internal Audit Report: LPF2304 Senior Managers and Certification Regime 
5    
\
* 

Findings and Management Action Plan 
 
Finding 1 – Senior Managers and Certification Regime governance 
arrangements 

Finding 
Rating 

Medium 
Priority 

 

There is a good interpretation of the general Senior Managers and 

Certification Regime (SM&CR) rules on page 6-7 of the LPFI Compliance 

Manual, albeit this is high-level and does not provide detailed policy / 

guidance that we would typically expect to see. Specifically, the document 

does not include such detail on:  

• processes for adhering to reasonable steps 

• the importance of a handover document (including how to complete the 

handover process) 

• how handover documents align with Board responsibilities and terms of 

reference to ensure compliance with the SM&CR regulatory requirements. 

 

In the other documents provided for internal audit review, the LPF People and 

Communications Governance Manual refers to SM&CR regulations 

throughout the document; however, there is limited information on the 

organisation’s governance arrangements related to the SM&CR requirements. 

For example, for “Section 7 - Key Controls of Governance”, there is no 

mention of SM&CR, such as SM&CR fit and proper reviews, onboarding and 

handover, certification process and confirmation.  

Risk 

Regulatory breach - current LPFI SM&CR arrangements may not meet 

regulatory expectations, and application of SM&CR requirements could be 

applied inconsistently leading to non-compliance with the FCA rules and 

regulations and a potential regulatory breach. 

 

Recommendations and Management Action Plan: Senior Managers and Certification Regime governance 

arrangements 

Re
f. 

Recommendation Agreed Management Action Owner Lead Officers  Timeframe 

1.1 a) LPFI should produce a specific document to 

outline its compliance with the SM&CR 

regulation. The document could include the 

below points to capture the SM&CR related 

governance arrangements: 

LPFI will finalise our draft SMCR document and 

ensure suggested points are covered.  This 

document also contains a Handover Policy and 

Responsibilities Map. 

 

 

Chief 

Executive 

Officer, LPF 

 

 

 

Chief Risk 

Officer, LPF 

Risk and 

Compliance 

Manager, LPF 

 

31/01/2024 

 

 

 

 

P
age 31



 

 Internal Audit Report: LPF2304 Senior Managers and Certification Regime 
6    
\
* 

• a governance operating model, including 

committee structure across the three lines 

of defence (if 3LoD is applicable) 

• committee terms of reference, agendas, 

management information, and action plans 

(this is captured in part in the Annual LPF 

Group Governance Update document) 

• how the governance framework is aligned 

with the business objectives 

• SM&CR training modules for new SMFs 

and Certified Individuals 

• ongoing certification requirements. 

b) The People and Communications 

Governance Manual should also be amended 

to include what the Consumer Duty (CD) 

Champion expects as evidence of compliance 

with CD expectations as per FCA guidelines. 

SM&CR places the accountability and 

responsibility of the CD on one person. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LPFI only provides services to professional clients 

who are out of scope of Consumer Duty.  LPFI 

will include a statement in our internal 

documentation noting we are currently out of 

scope of this regulation and should our business 

model change that we will revisit this regulation 

and update documentation, governance and 

processes as required. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Chief 

Executive 

Officer, LPF 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Chief Risk 

Officer, LPF 

Risk and 

Compliance 

Manager, LPF 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

31/01/2024 

 

  

P
age 32



 

 Internal Audit Report: LPF2304 Senior Managers and Certification Regime 
7    
\
* 

Finding 2 – Overall and prescribed responsibilities 
Finding 
Rating 

Medium 
Priority 

The Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) rules contain specific prescribed 

responsibilities that should be allocated to individuals. The Annual LPF Group 

Governance Update outlines the governance arrangements for the 

organisation including responsibilities of different committees. Page 5 of this 

document outlines what each executive manager is responsible for; however, 

there is no indication of actual SMC&R prescribed or overall responsibilities. 

These are not matched to the FCA prescribed responsibilities as per SYSC 

24.2. 

The LPFI Structure Charts outline the senior management and their teams 

and highlights if they are SMFs or Certified Individuals. There are no 

prescribed or overall responsibilities allocated to SMFs in this document 

(although these are contained in the Statement of Responsibilities for 

individual SMFs).  

 

The FCA rules require a comprehensive and up-to-date document (the 

management responsibilities map) that describes its management and 

governance arrangements. The information typically found in a Management 

Responsibilities Map is captured elsewhere, notably the Annual LPF Group 

Governance Update. This does not provide a holistic view that demonstrates 

how responsibilities have been allocated. 

Risk 

Regulatory breach - current LPFI SM&CR arrangements may not meet 

regulatory expectations, application of SM&CR requirements could be applied 

inconsistently leading to non-compliance with the FCA rules and regulations 

and a potential regulatory breach of SYSC 24.2 (Allocation of prescribed 

senior management responsibilities), and SYSC 25.2 (Documented 

responsibilities map), that describes its management and governance 

arrangement and the responsibilities shared or divided between individuals. 

Recommendations and Management Action Plan: Overall and prescribed responsibilities 
 

Ref. Recommendation Agreed Management Action Owner Lead Officers  Timeframe 

2.1 a) Prescribed responsibilities: The Group 

Governance Update should clearly state governance 

arrangements for SM&CR compliance. LPFI should 

produce a list of SMFs and Certified persons 

responsibilities in the standalone SM&CR governance 

document as per recommendation one. 

b) Responsibilities Map: LPFI should create a 

standalone document that would provide clarity on the 

SM&CR arrangements in place for ease of reference for 

SMFs and Certified individuals. 

a.1) LPF’s Governance Overview will be 

updated to state governance 

arrangements for SMCR compliance 

a.2) SMF and Certified person 

responsibilities are addressed within the 

SMCR document and will be addressed as 

part of action 1.1 

b) A Responsibilities Map has already 

been drafted as part of the LPFI SMCR 

document.  This action will be addressed 

as part of action 1.1. 

Chief 

Executive 

Officer, LPF 

 

 

 

 

 

N/A 

Company 

Secretary, LPF 

 

 

 

 

 

 

N/A 

31/03/2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

N/A 

 

P
age 33



 

 Internal Audit Report: LPF2304 Senior Managers and Certification Regime 
8    
\
* 

Finding 3 – Senior Management Functions handover policy Finding 
Rating 

Medium 
Priority 

 

LPFI does not have a Senior Management Functions (SMF) Handover policy. 

Review of the handover document that was prepared for the incoming Chair 

concluded that it is generally fit for purpose and can be used as a template for 

future SMF handovers. However, the SM&CR rules require a documented 

handover policy. 

We also assessed the handover document prepared for the outgoing Chair, to 

identify any gaps in expectations. We have outlined the below points: 

• the priority items as per SYSC 25.9.7G (3) do not have a 'complete by' 

date. Page 5 states no timescales for priority matters, and without 

timescales it is difficult to monitor progress 

• limited details of responsibilities being handed over to the new SMFs 

• limited details on the systems and controls in place per the requirements 

of SYSC 25.9.5.  

Risk 

Regulatory breach - LPFI may not comply with SYSC 25.9.4R (Handover 

procedures and documents). There is a risk that the current LPFI SM&CR 

arrangements do not meet regulatory expectations. As such, application of 

SM&CR requirements could be applied inconsistently leading to non-

compliance with the FCA rules and regulations and a potential regulatory 

breach. 

 

Recommendations and Management Action Plan: Senior Management Functions handover policy 

Ref. Recommendation Agreed Management Action Owner Lead Officers  Timeframe 

3.1 A handover policy should be produced and included as 

part of the SM&CR standalone document. As per FCA 

guidance, organisations must have a policy which 

explains how they comply with SYSC 25.9.4R rules 

about handover material. 

FCA guidance also states that the information and 

material in the handover policy should be practical and 

helpful and not just a record - LPFI should review if this 

is the case in this instance. The policy should include 

the Handover systems, controls it uses, and how the 

handover process is completed and recorded. 

A Handover Policy has already been 

drafted as part of the LPFI SMCR 

document.  This action will be addressed 

as part of action 1.1 

N/A N/A N/A 

P
age 34



 

 Internal Audit Report: LPF2304 Senior Managers and Certification Regime 
9    
\
* 

Finding 4 – Appointment and induction process Finding 
Rating 

Low Priority 

 

The Senior Managers and Certification Regime (SM&CR) requirements 

stipulate specific activities / processes that organisations should operate when 

appointing individuals. Although a “recruitment flowchart” has been 

documented for guidance, there is no reference to the SM&CR requirements 

applicable to LPFI. 

Review of documentation relating to the appointment of the Chief Investment 

Officer and Non-Executive Director recruitment carried out by LPFI found that, 

while we can see that activities performed were aligned to expectations, the 

detailed policy and the flowchart does not sufficiently capture the process that 

is followed in practice.  

Risk 

Regulatory breach - current LPFI induction process may not adequately 

define and address SM&CR requirements, and application of SM&CR 

requirements could be applied inconsistently leading to non-compliance with 

the FCA rules and regulations and a potential regulatory breach. 

 

Recommendations and Management Action Plan: Appointment and induction process 

Ref. Recommendation Agreed Management Action Owner Lead Officers  Timeframe 

4.1 LPFI should document its processes in line with 

regulatory expectations for appointment and induction 

to ensure steps are not missed. These should include: 

• the fit and proper assessment for the initial 

appointment and the required regular assessments, 

criminal records check and regulatory references 

• the 12-week rules 

• individual responsibility duties 

• certification regime 

• individual conduct rules 

• SMF and Certified roles and requirements for the 

Statement of Responsibilities. 

The processes noted are included in the 

LPFI SMCR document already drafted.  

This action will be addressed as part of 

action 1.1. 

N/A N/A N/A 

 

  

P
age 35



 

 Internal Audit Report: LPF2304 Senior Managers and Certification Regime 
10    
\
* 

Finding 5 – Oversight and governance Finding 
Rating 

Medium 
Priority 

 

Organisations should have in place effective oversight and reporting 

arrangements that enable the Board to: 

• monitor and ensure it operates in line with its SM&CR framework 

• demonstrate compliance with SM&CR requirements. 

In addition, prescribed responsibilities for the Chief Risk Officer include: 

• responsibility for the organisation’s performance of its obligations under 

the SM&CR including implementation and oversight 

• responsibility for the organisation’s performance of its obligations under 

the certification regime. 

Key mechanisms to support and evidence the above can include: 

• records of key decisions 

• compliance monitoring and testing 

• governance meetings 

• audit trails. 

Although internal audit was able to see some evidence of the above via 

meeting agendas, committee reports and approved SM&CR documentation 

provided, LPFI does not have in place a formal documented policy / approach 

for ongoing evidencing and monitoring.  

Risk 

Regulatory breach - absence of an agreed and documented approach to 

ongoing evidencing and monitoring of how the SM&CR framework is applied 

and monitored increases the risk of:  

• issues in performance of LPFI’s obligations under the SM&CR going 

undetected 

• LPFI being unable to articulate how it evidences compliance 

• LPFI being unable to demonstrate how its approved persons maintain 

compliance (e.g., via records of key decisions and sufficient audit trails 

within each function of LPFI) 

• the Chief Risk Officer being unable to meet the prescribed responsibilities 

allocated to them.  

 
 

Recommendations and Management Action Plan: Oversight and governance 

Ref. Recommendation Agreed Management Action Owner Lead Officers  Timeframe 

5.1 LPFI should agree and document its approach to 

monitoring and evidencing its ongoing compliance with 

the SM&CR requirements. This should form part of the 

overall governance arrangements, including the 

documented policies, procedures, processes, and 

systems. The specific areas will provide evidence of the 

oversight and monitoring of the SM&CR framework: 

LPFI’s oversight and reporting 

arrangements for SMCR will be formally 

agreed and articulated to provide 

appropriate oversight and assurance to 

the LPFI Board and senior management 

regarding SMCR arrangements.  

Chief 

Executive 

Officer, LPF 

 

Company 

Secretary, LPF 

30/04/2024 

P
age 36



 

 Internal Audit Report: LPF2304 Senior Managers and Certification Regime 
11    
\
* 

• records of key decisions - documented significant 

decisions made by senior managers caught by 

SM&CR, especially those decisions that have 

regulatory implications 

• compliance monitoring and testing - documented 

results of compliance monitoring activities, including 

any identified issues and the actions taken to 

address them 

• governance meetings - minutes of relevant 

governance meetings where SM&CR related 

matters are discussed, including processes for 

minute taking, and collecting evidence of challenge 

• audit trails - establish and maintain audit trails for 

key processes to demonstrate accountability and 

traceability (showing how approved persons and 

their teams make/act on key decisions). 

 

  

P
age 37



 

 Internal Audit Report: LPF2304 Senior Managers and Certification Regime 
12    
\
* 

Finding 6 – Fitness and Propriety assessment process and procedures  Finding 
Rating 

Advisory 

 

In our view, the Fitness and Propriety certification example document covers the FCA expectations and is generally fit for 

purpose. There is, however, an opportunity to improve this by providing additional detail and expanding on information 

provided regarding the candidate's experience and its relation to the role. This would provide for a more comprehensive 

document aligned to good practice. 

 

  

P
age 38



 

 Internal Audit Report: LPF2304 Senior Managers and Certification Regime 
13    
\
* 

Appendix 1 – Control Assessment and Assurance Definitions 
Control Assessment Rating Control Design Adequacy Control Operation Effectiveness 

Well managed  
Well-structured design efficiently achieves fit-for purpose control 

objectives 
Controls consistently applied and operating at optimum level of 

effectiveness. 

Generally 
Satisfactory 

 Sound design achieves control objectives Controls consistently applied 

Some 
Improvement 
Opportunity 

 Design is generally sound, with some opportunity to introduce 
control improvements 

Conformance generally sound, with some opportunity to enhance 
level of conformance 

Major 
Improvement 
Opportunity 

 Design is not optimum and may put control  

objectives at risk 
Non-conformance may put control objectives at risk 

Control Not 
Tested 

N/A Not applicable for control design assessments 
Control not tested, either due to ineffective design or due to design 

only audit 

 
Overall Assurance Ratings 

Substantial 
Assurance 

A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists, 

with internal controls operating effectively and being consistently 

applied to support the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

Reasonable 
Assurance 

There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management 

and control in place. Some issues, non-compliance or scope for 

improvement were identified which may put at risk the achievement 

of objectives in the area audited. 

Limited 
Assurance 

Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified. 

Improvement is required to the system of governance, risk 

management and control to effectively manage risks to the 

achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

No Assurance 

Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, 

weaknesses or non-compliance identified. The system of 

governance, risk management and control is inadequate to 

effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area 

audited. 

 

Finding Priority Ratings 

Advisory 
A finding that does not have a risk impact but has been raised to 
highlight areas of inefficiencies or good practice. 

Low Priority 
An issue that results in a small impact to the achievement of 
objectives in the area audited. 

Medium 
Priority 

An issue that results in a moderate impact to the achievement of 
objectives in the area audited.  

High Priority 
An issue that results in a severe impact to the achievement of 
objectives in the area audited. 

Critical 
Priority 

An issue that results in a critical impact to the achievement of 
objectives in the area audited. The issue needs to be resolved as 
a matter of urgency. 

 

P
age 39



Appendix 2: LPF Overdue actions as at 6 November 2023

Code Audit % Progress Observation Title Rating Recommendation Management Action Status Due Date Revised Date Status Update

80%
5 Actions 

4 closed

1 in progress

1 overdue

67%
3 Actions

2 closed

1 in progress

1 overdue

64%

High Priority LPF2203 - Recs 1.2 and 1.3 

Training for Tier 1 supplier 

owners / due diligence

1.2 LPF will carry out targeted training for 

Tier 1 supplier owners on monitoring and 

consider appropriate oversight via RMG 

reporting. 1.3As part of action 1.2, targeted 

training will cover annual due diligence. 

Supplier framework document review will 

consider due diligence templates or 

checklists with set items, tailored to specific 

tiers. 

In Progress 30/09/2023 31/12/2023

LPF2203 - Issue 5 

Ongoing 

monitoring and 

oversight

Medium 

Priority 

LPF2203 Rec 5.1 

Enhancements to and 

review of supplier 

database 

LPF will enhance existing supplier database 

to include additional data fields, including 

dates of IT assessment and DPIA, and links to 

full records.  A review of the database will be 

established, with results provided to senior 

management as part of RMG oversight.

In Progress 30/09/2023 31/12/2023

LPF2203

14 Actions

9 closed

5 in progress

3 overdue

LPF2203 - Issue 1: 

Supplier 

management 

processes for 

Critical Suppliers

Although some of the actions associated 

to this issue have been satisfactorily 

completed, there are some other actions 

that are directly relevant to the overall 

supplier management framework, which 

is not due to complete until 31/12/23. 

Consequently it is appropriate to extend 

the due date for this issue to 31/12/23 to 

tie into completion of the review of the 

supplier management framework.

LPF will review records for existing critical 

suppliers and ensure that business case 

documentation is stored in correct supplier 

files. Supplier management policy will be 

updated to specify where supplier records, 

such as business case, should be stored.

In Progress 30/09/2023 31/12/2023LPF - Third Party 

Supplier 

Management

High Priority LPF2203 - Rec 1.1 Business 

Case Documentation for 

critical suppliers

Likewise, we will look to re-review the sub-

group registers (and tie-in with main group 

register) with these points in mind We will 

consider within Risk Management Group 

(RMG) and report back through the usual 

channels with any updates arising. 

In Progress 31/03/2023 31/12/2023 LPF's corporate risk register has been 

reviewed and updated to ensure as 

clearer articulation and evaluation of 

risks, supported by a revised risk 

assessment methodology. A risk 

taxonomy and definitions have been 

agreed to ensure consistency with 

reporting, and changes to the risk 

management framework have been 

communicated to all staff.

LPF have produced user manuals and 

documentation for key/business critical 

systems and will review the requirements 

and suitability of the currently available 

generic documentation for the others during 

2022.

In Progress 31/12/2022 31/12/2023 All critical systems have documentation. 

Remaining systems to be reviewed to 

ascertain which still require operational 

procedures.

LPF2103 LPF Risk 

Management

LPF2103 Issue 2: 

Maintenance of 

risk registers

Low Priority LPF2103 Rec 2.1 

Recommendation: 

Maintenance of risk 

registers

LPF2003 LPF – Technology 

Model 

Development

LPF2003 Issue 3: 

Post-

Implementation 

Activities

Medium 

Priority

LPF2003 Rec 3.1.2: Post-

Implementation Activities

P
age 40



 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023       Page 1 

“  

 
 

Pensions Audit Sub Committee 

2.00pm, Monday, 4 December 2023   

 

Employer Performance and Data Quality Update 
 

Item number 6.3  

  

 

1. Recommendations 

 

 

Karlynn Sokoluk 

Chief Operations Officer, Lothian Pension Fund 

Contact: Diane Sinclair, Pensions Employer and Member Manager, Lothian Pension Fund 

E-mail: lpfgovernancecomms@lpf.org.uk | Tel: 0333 996 1900 

  

Page 41

Agenda Item 6.3



 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023       Page 2 

Employer Performance and Data Quality Update 
 

2. Executive Summary 

 

 

 

3. Background 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 42



 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023       Page 3 

 

 

 

 

 

4. Main Report 

Pension Administration Strategy (PAS) performance 2022/23, to date 

 

 

 

Page 43



 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023       Page 4 

 

 

3830

6713

3115

320

562

150
92% 92%

95%

90%

91%

92%

93%

94%

95%

96%

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

Year to
Q2 22/23

Total for
year 22/23

Year to
Q2 23/24

Starters

Number in target Number out of target % within target

1310

2609

574

1009

1964

288

56%
57%

67%

50%

52%

54%

56%

58%

60%

62%

64%

66%

68%

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

5000

Year to
Q2 22/23

Total for
year 22/23

Year to
Q2 23/24

Leavers

Number in target Number out of target % within target

Page 44



 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023       Page 5 

 

 

Page 45



 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023       Page 6 

 

 

Page 46



 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023       Page 7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 47



 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023       Page 8 

 

 

 

Page 48



 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023       Page 9 

 

 

 

 

 

5. Financial impact 

 

 

  

Page 49



 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023       Page 10 

6. Stakeholder/Regulatory Impact 

 

 

 

7. Background reading/external references 

 

8. Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Scottish Homes Pension Fund – Data Quality Report 2023  

Appendix 2 – Lothian Pension Fund – Data Quality Report 2023 

Appendix 3 – Data Quality Improvement Plan 2023 

Page 50

https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/trustees/contributions-data-and-transfers/record-keeping/improve-your-scheme-data#:~:text=You%20should%20review%20scheme%20data%20at%20least%20once,assess%20the%20one%20you%20currently%20have%20in%20place.


Appendix 1  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Local Government Pension Scheme 

Data Quality Report 

Scottish Homes Pension Fund 

 

 

Page 51



2 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

Data Quality Report 

 

 

Diane Sinclair 

Pensions Employer and Member Manager 

Lothian Pension Fund 

 

 

 

Version October 2023 

 

  

Page 52



3 | P a g e  
 

Contents 

 
1. Summary 

1.1. Introduction 

1.2. Data Quality Analysis Tool 

1.3. Benchmark 

2. TPR Test Results 
2.1. TPR Common Data Test Results 

2.2. TPR Scheme-specific Data Test Results 

2.3. Historical Results 

3. Analysis of Data Results 

3.1. Membership Records in Scope 

3.2. Summary of Common Data Results 

3.3. Summary of Scheme-specific Data Results 

4. Test Conditions and Exclusions 

4.1. Common Data  
4.2. Scheme-specific Data  
 

  

Page 53



4 | P a g e  
 

1. Summary 

 

1.1 Introduction 
 
The Pensions Regulator (TPR) is the UK regulator of work-based pensions schemes. It works 
with trustees, employers, pension specialists and business advisors giving guidance on what 
is expected of them when running, overseeing or advising a public service pension scheme. 
To manage a scheme properly the scheme needs to make sure it has accurate, complete and 
up-to -date records as failure to do so means the scheme is at risk of not meeting their legal 
obligations. 
 
Scottish Homes Pension Fund (the Fund), in the role of scheme administrator, is expected to 
regularly review the quality of the scheme data but must do so at least once a year. TPR 
have created data quality measures for common and scheme-specific data and scores are 
based on data being present and accurate. These data scores are submitted in each scheme 
return to TPR. 
 
1.2 Data Quality Analysis Tool 
 
Since 2018 the Fund have employed Heywood’s data quality service to test and analyse the 
data to satisfy TPR measures. This was carried out once a year using a cut of the Funds 
August data. Heywood would supply the overall scores and data quality reports. In April 
2021 the Fund procured Heywood’s new analytical tool “Insights” which uses tableau 
business intelligence software. The data quality tests and dashboards are included in the 
tool. This has given the Fund greater control as it allows access to results daily, giving 
comfort that the rectification work being undertaken is correct. 
 
1.3 Benchmark and Data Types 
 

TPR requires schemes to have effective processes for maintaining data and continually 
improving the quality of the data held. Analysis of data should cover such tests as 

• checking there is data in all the fields as expected, 

• checking data items are consistent with each other, 

• checking data items are in a valid format. 
TPR require schemes to validate 2 types of data, common and scheme-specific. Common 
data should be held by all schemes and can be used to uniquely identify members. This 
should include  

• national insurance number, 

• surname and forename or initials, 

• gender, 

• date of birth, 

• date pensionable service started, 

• membership status, 

• address including postcode. 
Scheme-specific data items are dependent on the scheme structure and design but should 
reflect the data necessary to calculate and pay benefits. 
 
 

Page 54



5 | P a g e  
 

 

2. TPR Test Results 

 

2.1 TPR Common Data Test Results 
 

The percentage of member records that did not fail any of the tests deemed to be in the 
core list of TPR tests is 97.7%. This is the figure that will be quoted on the 2023 scheme 
return to TPR. 
 

 
 

 
 
2.2 TPR Scheme-specific Data Test Results 
 

The percentage of member records that did not fail any of the tests deemed to be in the 
core list of TPR tests is 100%. This is the figure that will be quoted on the 2023 scheme 
return to TPR. 
 

 

 
2.3 Historical Results 

Page 55



6 | P a g e  
 

The common data score decreased by 0.1% from last year’s return whilst the scheme 
specific score was maintained at 100%. 
 

3. Analysis of Data Results 

 

3.1 Membership Records in Scope 
 

The 2023 tests were conducted on 2,593 member records an increase of 22 from 2022. Not 
all member records are required to be tested under each data category. These are detailed 
in the section test conditions and exclusions. 
 
3.2 Summary of Common Data Results 
 

The graph below indicates the Fund’s performance for each data category extracted on 29 
September 2023. 
 

 
 

 

The score for the Address category is the only category not to achieve 99% or above. The 
following table shows the breakdown of the number of records that failed this category’s 
tests. 
 

  
 

57 member records are recorded as “gone away”. Details of the Fund’s proposals to 
improve this test score is outlined in the Data Improvement Plan. 
 

3.3 Summary of Scheme-specific Data Results 
 

The following graph indicates the Fund’s performance for each data category extracted on 
29 September 2023. 
 

Page 56



7 | P a g e  
 

 
 

The following tables shows the percentage of members without a failure for the previous 
categories’ tests. 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

Page 57



8 | P a g e  
 

 

 
 

No Scottish Homes Pension Fund membership fell into scope for the BCE8 and 
AA Charge test criteria. 
 

 

 

 
 

4. Test Conditions and Exclusions 

 
 

The following images have been taken from the data analysis tool and explains the how a 
record may fail a test condition and any members that may be excluded from the test.  
 

 4.1 Common Data 
 

The following tests were developed by Heywood Pension Technologies to fit the TPR 
guidance on common data quality testing. 

Page 58



9 | P a g e  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 59



10 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 60



11 | P a g e  
 

4.2 Scheme-Specific 

The following tests were developed by Heywood Pension Technologies in conjunction with 
the LGPS Scheme Advisory Board.  
 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 61



12 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 
 

Page 62



13 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 63



14 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 64



15 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 65



16 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 66



17 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 67



18 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 68



19 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 69



20 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 70



Appendix 2  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Local Government Pension Scheme 

Data Quality Report 

Lothian Pension Fund 

 

 

Page 71



2 | P a g e  
 

 

 

Data Quality Report 

 

 

Diane Sinclair 

Pensions Employer and Member Manager 

Lothian Pension Fund 

 

 

 

Version October 2023 

 

  

Page 72



3 | P a g e  
 

Contents 
 
1. Summary 

1.1. Introduction 

1.2. Data Quality Analysis Tool 

1.3. Benchmark and Data Types 

2. TPR Test Results 
2.1. TPR Common Data Test Results 

2.2. TPR Scheme-specific Data Test Results 

2.3. Historical Results 

3. Analysis of Data Results 

3.1. Membership Records in Scope 

3.2. Summary of Common Data Results 

3.3. Summary of Scheme-specific Data Results 

4. Test Conditions and Exclusions 

4.1. Common Data  
4.2. Scheme-specific Data  
 

  

Page 73



4 | P a g e  
 

1. Summary 

 

1.1 Introduction 
 
The Pensions Regulator (TPR) is the UK regulator of work-based pensions schemes. It works 
with trustees, employers, pension specialists and business advisors giving guidance on what 
is expected of them when running, overseeing or advising a public service pension scheme. 
To manage a scheme properly the scheme needs to make sure it has accurate, complete and 
up-to -date records as failure to do so means the scheme is at risk of not meeting their legal 
obligations. 
 
Scottish Homes Pension Fund (the Fund), in the role of scheme administrator, is expected to 
regularly review the quality of the scheme data but must do so at least once a year. TPR 
have created data quality measures for common and scheme-specific data and scores are 
based on data being present and accurate. These data scores are submitted in each scheme 
return to TPR. 
 

1.2 Data Quality Analysis Tool 
 

Since 2018 the Fund have employed Heywood’s data quality service to test and analyse the 
data to satisfy TPR measures. This was carried out once a year using a cut of the Funds 
August data. Heywood would supply the overall scores and data quality reports. In April 
2021 the Fund procured Heywood’s new analytical tool “Insights” which uses tableau 
business intelligence software. The data quality tests and dashboards are included in the 
tool. This has given the Fund greater control as it allows access to results daily, giving 
comfort that the rectification work being undertaken is correct. 
 

1.3 Benchmark and Data Types 
 

TPR requires schemes to have effective processes for maintaining data and continually 
improving the quality of the data held. Analysis of data should cover such tests as 

• checking there is data in all the fields as expected, 

• checking data items are consistent with each other, 

• checking data items are in a valid format. 
TPR require schemes to validate 2 types of data, common and scheme-specific. Common 
data should be held by all schemes and can be used to uniquely identify members. This 
should include  

• national insurance number, 

• surname and forename or initials, 

• gender, 

• date of birth, 

• date pensionable service started, 

• membership status, 

• address including postcode. 
Scheme-specific data items are dependent on the scheme structure and design but should 
reflect the data necessary to calculate and pay benefits. 
 
 
 

Page 74



5 | P a g e  
 

2. TPR Test Results 

 

2.1 TPR Common Data Test Results 

 
The percentage of member records that did not fail any of the tests deemed to be in the 
core list of TPR tests is 98.5%. This is the figure that will be quoted on the 2023 scheme 
return to TPR. 
 

 
 

 
 
2.2 TPR Scheme-specific Data Test Results 
 

The percentage of member records that did not fail any of the tests deemed to be in the 
core list of TPR tests is 99.56%. This is the figure that will be quoted on the 2023 scheme 
return to TPR. 
 

 

 
2.3 Historical Results 

The common data score decreased by 0.1% from last year’s return whilst the scheme 
specific score increased by 0.13%. 

 

Page 75



6 | P a g e  
 

3. Analysis of Data Results 

 

 
3.1 Membership Records in Scope 
 

The 2023 tests were conducted on 170,030 member records an increase of 4,250 from 
2022. Not all member records are required to be tested under each data category. These 
are detailed in the section test conditions and exclusions. 
 
3.2 Summary of Common Data Results 
 

The graph below indicates the Fund’s performance for each data category extracted on 29 
September 2023. 
 

 
 

 

The score for the Address category is the only category not to achieve 99% or above. The 
following table shows the breakdown of the number of records that failed this category’s 
tests. 
 

  
 

2,072 member records are recorded as “gone away”. Details of the Fund’s proposals to 
improve this test score is outlined in the annual Data Improvement Plan. 
 

3.3 Summary of Scheme-specific Data Results 
 

The following graph indicates the Fund’s performance for each data category extracted on 
29 September 2023. 
 

Page 76



7 | P a g e  
 

 
 

The following tables shows the percentage of members without a failure for the previous 
categories’ tests. 
 

  

  

 

 

  
 
 

Page 77



8 | P a g e  
 

  
 
 

4. Test Conditions and Exclusions 

 
 

The following images have been taken from the data analysis tool and explains the how a 
record may fail a test condition and any members that may be excluded from the test.  
 

 4.1 Common Data 
 

The following tests were developed by Heywood Pension Technologies to fit the TPR 
guidance on common data quality testing. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 78



9 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 79



10 | P a g e  
 

 

 

4.2 Scheme-Specific 

The following tests were developed by Heywood Pension Technologies in conjunction with 
the LGPS Scheme Advisory Board.  
 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 80



11 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 
 

Page 81



12 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 82



13 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 83



14 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 84



15 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 85



16 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 86



17 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 87



18 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 88



19 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 89



Appendix 1 
 

Appendix 3  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Data Improvement Plan 

October 2023 

 

Page 90



 2 

 

 Summary  

 

This improvement plan primarily aims to address the key issues identified in the Fund’s 

Annual Data Quality review which took place in September 2023 and demonstrates the 

appropriate steps the Fund is taking to tackle the issues raised in the review and how it will 

improve the data held. 

The Fund also undertakes additional measures to ensure that accurate pension benefits are 

communicated and paid to the correct member or beneficiary. The Fund is currently 

undertaking a procurement exercise to secure a new mortality and tracing service. 

The next generation of member online portal, known as TME, has been released by 

Heywood Pensions Technologies. The Fund will create a plan to upgrade to TME during 

2024.  

In the last year significant data collection and analysis was carried out by the Fund and its 

employers in preparation for the McCloud judgement of the public sector pension reforms. 

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Remediable Service) (Scotland) Regulations 2023 

was laid before the Scottish Parliament and came into force on 1 October 2023. To comply 

with these regulations the Fund will be commencing record updates and rectification work. 

Due to delays in the Pensions Dashboard Programme the Fund’s internal project plan has 

been placed on hold. A final pensions dashboards eco-system connection deadline of 31 

October 2026 has been fixed but new staging timelines are still awaited. The Fund will 

release a new project plan once further guidance on staging dates has been published. 

Plan Objectives 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 91



 3 

 

Outcomes 

 

 

Keep the data quality 

dashboard under monthly 

review. Rectifying issues 

and pinpointing any 

training requirements. 

Identify potential data 

errors utilising the 

actuary’s fund valuation 

data cleansing tool on a 

quarterly basis 

  

P
age 92



 4 

P
age 93



 5 

 
 
  

 

P
age 94



 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023     Page 1 

 

 
 

Pensions Audit Sub Committee 

2.00pm, Monday, 4 December 2023 

 

Investment Income Review Cross Border Withholding Tax 

and EU Tax Recoveries 
 

Item number 6.4  

  

1.  Recommendations 

 

 

 

Alan Sievewright 

Chief Finance Officer, Lothian Pension Fund 

Contact: Jason Koumides, Financial Controller, Lothian Pension Fund 

Laura Forsyth, Senior Finance Manager, Lothian Pension Fund 

E-mail:  lpfgovernancecomms@lpf.org.uk | Tel: 0333 996 1900  

Page 95

Agenda Item 6.4

mailto:lpfgovernancecomms@lpf.org.uk


 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023     Page 2 

Investment Income Review Cross Border Withholding Tax 

and EU Tax Recoveries 
 

2. Executive Summary 

 

 

 

3. Background 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 96



 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023     Page 3 

 

 

 

Lothian Pension Fund 2022/23 
£ 

2021/22 
£ 

Brought Forward 1 April 21,163,369.45  14,900,747.76 

Recoverable tax accrued during year 8,041,452.20 7,042,029.31 

Claims paid during year (191,203.19) (779,407.62) 

Carried Forward 31 March 29,013,618.46  21,163,369.45  

 

Scottish Homes Pension Fund 2022/23 
£ 

2021/22 
£ 

Brought Forward 1 April 11,686.58 11,780.50 

Recoverable tax accrued during year 464.98 (93.92) 

Claims paid during year - - 

Carried Forward 31 March 12,151.56 11,686.58 

 

 

 

Page 97



 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023     Page 4 

4. Main Report 

Benchmarking (Assurance) Review 

 

 

 Findings – WHT Rates Applied 

 

 

 

Year Lothian 
Pension 
Fund 

Lothian 
Pension 
Fund 

Lothian 
Pension Fund 

Comment 

 30/9/23 
£ 

31/3/23 
£ 

31/3/22 
£ 

 

2019 2,532k 2,503k 2,333k NT status at 30 September 2023: 
“Reclaim Submitted to Tax 
Authority”   

2020 3,187k 3,150k 2,937k NT status at 30 September 2023: 
“Reclaim Submitted to Tax 
Authority”   

2021 2,360k 2,333k 2,175k NT status at 30 September 2023: 
“Claim under preparation”   

2022 2,616k 2,587k 1,304k NT status at 30 September 2023: 
“Certification Requested”   

Page 98



 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023     Page 5 

Year Lothian 
Pension 
Fund 

Lothian 
Pension 
Fund 

Lothian 
Pension Fund 

Comment 

2023 2,855k 1,657k - Claim cannot be made until the 
end of the calendar year. 

Total 13,550k 12,231k 8,749k  

 

 

Year Lothian 
Pension 
Fund 

Lothian 
Pension 
Fund 

Lothian 
Pension 
Fund 

Comment 

 30/9/23 
£ 

31/3/23 
£ 

31/3/22 
£ 

 

2016 589k 716k 688k NT status at 30 September 2023: 
“Documentation Required From 
Client”   

2017 961k 973k 936k NT status at 30 September 2023: 
“Reclaim Submitted to Tax 
Authority” 

2018 1,133k 1,147k 1,103k NT status at 30 September 2023: 
“Reclaim Submitted to Tax 
Authority” 

2019 1,427k 1,445k 1,390k NT status at 30 September 2023: 
“Reclaim Submitted to Tax 
Authority” 

2020 1,290k 1,306k 1,256k NT status at 30 September 2023: 
“Reclaim Submitted to Tax 
Authority” 

2021 1,002k 1,015k 976k NT status at 30 September 2023: 
“Market Issue”   

2022 1,641k 1,663k 169k NT status at 30 September 2023: 
“Documentation Required From 
Client”   

2023 1,800k 167k - Claim cannot be made until the end 
of the calendar year. 

Total 9,843k 8,433k 6,520k  

 

Page 99



 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023     Page 6 

 

 

Year Lothian 
Pension 
Fund 

Lothian 
Pension 
Fund 

Lothian 
Pension 
Fund 

Comment 

 30/9/23 
£ 

31/3/23 
£ 

31/3/22 
£ 

 

2019 465k 547k 526k NT status at 30 September 2023: 
“Reclaim Submitted to Tax 
Authority” 

2020 443k 450k 432k NT status at 30 September 2023: 
“Claim Under Preparation” 

2021 183k 185k 179k NT status at 30 September 2023: 
“Certification Requested” 

2022 180k 182k - NT status at 30 September 2023: 
“Certification Requested” 

2023 143k 7k - NT status at 30 September 2023: 
“Claim under preparation” 

Total 1,415k 1,371k 1,137k  

 

 

Year Lothian 
Pension 
Fund 

Lothian 
Pension 
Fund 

Lothian 
Pension 
Fund 

Comment 

 30/9/23 
£ 

31/3/23 
£ 

31/3/22 
£ 

 

2020 472k 478k 459k NT status at 30 September 2023: 

“Reclaim Submitted to Sub 

Custodian”   

2021 1,269k 1,286k 1,236k NT status at 30 September 2023: 
“Claim under preparation”   

2022 1,460k 1,479k 184k NT status at 30 September 2023: 
“Certification Requested”   

Page 100



 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023     Page 7 

2023 825k 159k - NT status at 30 September 2023: 
“Certification Requested”   

Total 4,026k 3,402k 561k  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 101



 

  

Pensions Audit Sub Committee – 4 December 2023     Page 8 

 

 

 

 

5. Financial Impact 

 

 

6. Stakeholder/Regulatory Impact 

 

 

7. Background reading/external references 

 

8. Appendices 

 

Page 102



 
  

Appendix 1 – Tax reclaims by country 

Lothian Pension 
Fund 

Reclaim 
Amount 

Number of 
Dividends 

Reclaim 
Amount 

Number of 
Dividends  

31/03/2023 31/03/2023 31/03/2022 31/03/2022  
£  £  

Austria  13,877.73 2 13,346.69 2 

Belgium  1,371,284.13 30 1,136,624.71 23 

Canada  976,061.31 103 996,988.86 104 

Denmark  573,895.20 59 434,170.34 49 

Finland  3,402,191.02 16 1,879,923.50 11 

France  5,664.67 2 5,447.90 2 

Germany  8,432,793.11 178 6,519,623.14 151 

Ireland 25,801.40 2 - - 

Netherlands  720,136.10 37 471,209.40 28 

Spain  284,677.44 18 84,627.24 8 

Switzerland  12,230,863.62 113 8,749,159.87 89 

United Kingdom*  966,012.75 22 862,518.87 20 

United States 10,359.98 2 9,728.93 2 

Grand Total 29,013,618.46 584 21,163,369.45 489 

Scottish Homes 
Pension Fund 

Reclaim 
Amount 

Number of 
Dividends 

Reclaim 
Amount 

Number of 
Dividends  

31/03/2023 31/03/202
3 

31/03/2022 31/03/2022 

 
£  £  

Germany 12,151.56 4 11,686.58 4 

Grand Total 12,151.56 4 11,686.58 4 

Page 103



 
  

Appendix 2 – Fokus Bank reclaims 

Page 104



Document is Restricted

Page 105

Agenda Item 9.1
by virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3, 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 7A
 of the Local Government(Scotland) Act 1973.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 117

Agenda Item 9.2
by virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 7A
 of the Local Government(Scotland) Act 1973.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2.00 pm Monday, 4th December, 2023
	Contacts:
	1. Quorum Check
	2. Order of Business
	3. Declaration of Interests
	4. Deputations
	5. Minutes
	6. Reports
	7. Motions
	8. Resolution to Consider in Private
	9. Private Reports


	5.1 Minute of the Pensions Audit Sub Committee of 26 September 2023
	5.1 a. Confidential Schedule - Pensions Audit Sub - 26.09.23

	6.1 Agenda Planning Update
	6.1 Agenda Planning  
	Pensions Audit Sub Committee
	Agenda Planning Update
	1. Recommendations

	Agenda Planning Update
	2. Executive Summary
	2.

	3. Background
	3.

	4. Main Report
	4.

	5. Financial impact
	6. Stakeholder/Regulatory Impact
	7. Background reading/external references
	8. Appendices



	6.1 Appendix 1 Agenda Planning
	6.1 Appendix 2 Agenda Planning Pension Audit Sub actions Nov23
	Pension Audit Sub Committee 


	6.2 Lothian Pension Fund - Internal Audit Update – November 2023 - report by Principal Audit Manager, The City of Edinburgh Council
	6.2 LPF Internal Audit Update - December 2023 (2)
	6.2 Appendix 1 - Final Report - LPF2304 Senior Managers and Certification Regime
	6.2 Appendix 2 - LPF Overdue Actions as at 061123 (1)

	6.3 Employer Performance and Data Quality Update
	6.3 Employer Performance and Data Quality Update
	6.3 Appendix 1 - Scottish Homes Pension Fund -  Data Quality Report 2023
	6.3 Appendix 2 - Lothian Pension Fund - Data Quality Report 2023
	6.3 Appendix 3 - Data Improvement Plan 2023

	6.4 Investment Income Review Cross Border Withholding Tax and EU Tax Recoveries
	9.1 Risk & Compliance Update - report by the Chief Risk Officer, Lothian Pension Fund
	9.2 IT Information Security Update – report by the Chief Operations Officer, Lothian Pension Fund



